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To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council and Citizens of the City of Hampton Georgia:

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within six months of the close of each
fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this
report, based upon a comprehensive f-amework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because
the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Fulton & Kozak, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the City of
Hampton’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024. The independent auditor's report is located
at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A.) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complements
this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

City Overview:

Located in the southwest comer of Henry County, Hampton is only forty minutes from the world’s busiest airport,
Hartsfield-Jackson International Airport. Hampton also is home to Atlanta Speedway Airport, which is located
just three nautical miles west of the historic downtown business district of the city. Benefitting from a fifty-five-
hundred-foot runway, Atlanta Speedway Airport is a public use facility approved for general aviation.
Additionally, Hampton is bisected by Ga. HWY 20 and SR 19-41 and is situated less than five miles from I 75,
and is home to Atlanta Motor Speedway.

& Our mission is to deliver high quality, responsive and effective municipal services to those who live, work, do business and visit our community.

I



For decades the city of Hampton occupied a geographic area of only 5.61 square miles. Beginning in
2019 Hampton begin to grow exponentially. Empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits
by annexation, the City annexed thirty-six-hundred-forty-three (3643) acres of undeveloped land into its
municipal borders during the years of 2019-2022. As a result, the footprint of the city has expanded to
10.2 square miles. The current population is 9358. However, through a combination of strategic
planning, strong, efficient local govemance, and certain economic incentives. the city’s population is
conservatively estimated to grow by more than fifteen percent (15%) over the course of the next two
years.

Financial Overview:

The City of Hampton Georgia is empowered to levy a property tax on real property located within its
boundaries. City operations are funded primarily through two main revenue streams:

e Governmental Revenues
e Enterprise Revenues

Governmental Revenues derive from:

o General Taxes (LOST, SPLOST, Property, Insurance Premium Tax, Franchise Tax, etc.)
s License & Permits

e Charges for Services

e Fines & Forfeitures

e Interest Eamed

e Other Miscellaneous Revenue

e (Capital Grants

e Public. Safety Impact Fee

e Park & Recreation Impact Fee

Enterprise Revenues derive from:

e Wastewater rates

e Water rates

e Sanitation rates

¢ FElectric rates

+ [nterest Income

¢ Other Revenues

e Water & Sewer Connection Fee

e Electric Tap Fee and Development Electric [nstallation Fee
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All revenue sources flow into nine (9) City Funds:

e General Fund

e Enterprise Fund

e SPLOST Fund

¢ Capital Grants Fund

e Capital Outlay Fund

* Hotel / Motel Tax Fund

e Development Authority

+ Downtown Development Authority
e Urban Redevelopment Agency

At the close of FY 2024, the City of Hampton Georgia continues to maintain a sound fiscal position, and
retains competitively low utility rates, despite aggressively addressing long needed capital improvement
projects. General Fund balance at the end of FY 2024 stands at more than 158% of operating cost.

The City of Hampton. Georgia on July10, 2024 paid off its Combined Utility System 2016 Revenue
Refunding Bonds, (the “Series 2016 Bonds™) used to construct a new wastewater treatment facility. The
City on July 10, 2024, issued $4,120,000 of its Combined Utility Revenue Bond, tax-exempt Series 2024
(the “Series 2024 Bonds™). for the purpose of financing infrastructure improvements to the System (the
~Series 2024 Project™ and to pay costs associated with the bond issue. The annual debt service of the
Series 2024 bonds will be funded by the Utilities Fund net operating income. See Note 8.

Also, on July 10, 2024, the City of Hampton Urban Redevelopment Agency (LURA) issued $3,100.000
of its Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2024 (the “Series 2024 Bonds™), for the purpose of carrying out
its Urban Redevelopment Plan and to pay costs associated with the bond issue. An Intergovernmental
agreement between the City of Hampton, Georgia and the URA provides for the funding of the URA
Series 2024 annual bonds debt service. See Note 8.

The City is empowered to collect property tax, however. in adopting the FY 2024 budget in September
2023 the city rolled back the FY 2023 property tax from 4.5 to 4.0 mils. The City was left with addressing
continuing decaying infrastructure; needs for investment in transportation, parks and recreation projects:
funding of general investment in human capital specifically for competitive pay for the general
govermment positions, police services and additional positions in parks. streets, water, wastewater and
funding requests for Hampton Development and Downtown Authorities along with the Urban
Development Agency formed on July 10, 2024.

Overview of City Governance:

In the late 1990°s the City of Hampton Georgia, transitioned to a city manager form of government from
a strong mayor form of government. The Hampton City Council is comprised of six members, elected
at large, and a mayor. The mayor and all council members are elected to alternating four-year terms,
with elections held every two years, on odd numbered years. Three council members stand for election
one odd numbered year, then the next odd numbered year thereafter the mayor and the other three
members stand for election.

Our mission is tc deliver hugh quality, responsive and effective municipal services to those whe live, work, do business and visit our community.
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All policy making decisions and legislative authority reside with the mayor and council, enabling them
to establish policy, pass ordinances, resolutions, establish zoning conditions and adopt budgets.
Additionally, the mayor and council have sole authority to set all utility, sanitation rates along with
approving all fee structures for fines, permits, etc. The Mayor and Council appoint members of various
boards and authorities.

The Mayor and Council appoint the City Manager, who is tasked with running day-to-day operations of
the city. The City Manager hires, leads, directs, guides, and advises department directors. City services
are provided through the collective effort of the following departments:

e Office of the City Manager
e Office of the City Clerk

e Finance

e Human Resources

o Community Development
s Police Department

e Municipal Court

e Public Works Administration
e Street Department

e Water Department
Wastewater Department
Electric Department
Stormwater Department
Parks Department
Mainstreet

IT

The City of Hampton, Georgia provides a full range of services, either directly, via IGA, or sub-
contracted services, including public safety and judicial; licenses and permits within the confines of
planning and zoning; public works improvements, the construction and maintenance of highways,
streets, and other infrastructure; recreational and cultural activities; electricity, water and sewer,
stormwater and refuse collection and leaf removal.

The City of Hampton, Georgia also is financially accountable for two separate development authorities,
and an Urban Development Agency (URA) with one focused on the economic vitality of the downtown
area of the city (Hampton Downtown Development Authority); the other (Hampton Development
Authority) focusing on business development and growth for all the other areas of the city, which are
not located in the downtown area and the URA focusing on rehabilitation and redevelopment of pockets
of blighted areas that exist in the City. Both authorities and the agency are reported separately as
individual funds within the City of Hampton Georgia’s financial statements. Additional information on
the three (3) entities can be found in the notes to the financial statements (see note B).
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The Council is required to adopt an initial budget for the fiscal year no later than September 30, preceding
the beginning of the fiscal year on October 1. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City
of Hampton Georgia’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by funds. functions (e.g..
public safety), and departments (e.g., police). Department heads may transfer resources within a
department as they see fit. Transfers between departments, however. need special approval from the C ity
Council.

Long-term financial planning and major initiatives

The continuing overall strategic goal(s) of the City of Hampton is best summarized as smart, planned,
quality growth while maintaining the charm and small town feel of its historic district. The city
significantly invests in public safety. consistently ranking in the top five safest cities in Georgia.
Additionally, the city invests in recreational facilities and youth activities. Consequently, the City’s
population continues to trend younger each year.

The city, as a function of strategic planning, has annexed more than thirty-two hundred acres of
undeveloped land. This strategy has placed the city in the enviable position of controlling both the rate
and quality of future growth.

Critical Investments:

This vear continues to solidify an overall multi-year strategic plan for addressing current, near and
midterm needs by absorbing the Wastewater Department operational costs increase to meet new EPD
standards; reflected of the final year of utility rate increase with only $1.00 rate increase for water and
wastewater and definitive investing in human resources, public safety. infrastructure, and economic
development.

Investment in Human Resources:

All positions throughout the City labor force were evaluated and increases awarded based on market
compensation and classification study.

Public Safety.

o Four (4) new police fully retrofitted cruisers

Investment in Infrastructure:
Transportation projects
«  Nine (9) road paving projects completed and/or closed:
o Pebble Rock Road from Water Course Way
o Watercourse Way from W. King Road to Pebble Rock Road
o Brdges Drive from Old Griffin Road to 19/41

o Dermrick Avenue from McDonough Street to Elm Street

Our mussion is to deliver high quality, responsive and effective municipal services to those who live, work, do business and visit our community
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o James Sureet from E. Main Street to Dermick Avenue

o Magnolia Park from E. Main to E. End

o Old Griffin Road from Woolsey Road to Bridges Drive

o Plum Blossom Lane from SW End to Weeping Willow Center

o W. Main Street from QOak Street to Woolsey Road
East King / Floyd Road roundabout intersection improvement completed.
Central Avenue Sidewalks from Westlawn to Georgia Avenue completed.
Central Avenue Sidewalks from W. Main to McBrayer Parking Lot completed.

Madison Circle/Canyon Drive completed.

Parks and Recreation

East Hampton Community Park Phase 2 completed.
East Hampton Community Park Phase 3- Multi Trail completed.
Completion of McBrayer Park drainage improvements completed.

LED lighting upgrade of Coley Park completed.

Other Infrastructure projects

Thompson Creek Sewer outfall project PH-1 completed.

West Main Street Water Main Replacement PH-2 completed.

West Main Street Stormwater PH-2 completed.

Georgia Avenue Stormwater Drainage Repairs completed.

Caldwell Drive Stormwater project completed.

Elm Street (Replacing culvert, utility relocation, right away stormwater, road, hydro) completed.
Elm street Culvert Replacement/Paving completed.

Completed critical upgrade of Hwy 20 electrical grid.

Investment in Economic Development:

The Hampton Development Authority (HDA) worked with the Panettoni Development
Corporation over a two-year period to market the City of Hampton to the Target Corporation.
As a result. Target chose to open a 1.3m sq. ft flow center in Hampton.

This project represented a $475m investment in our city, not to mention the downstream
economic benefit of the twelve hundred well-paying jobs created to staff this project.

The city further benefitted from an additional $553,725 in revenue deriving from the tax
abatement structure offered by the HDA to Target and authorized by an intergovernmental
agreement between the HDA and the City of Hampton was transferred to the city.
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= Since Target's decision to invest in the City of Hampton there has been a significant surge by

commercial developers.

= Blessed with ample water. sewer capacity and electricity the city has drawn intense interest from
the data center / technologv sector.

= Currently there is in one large data center project underway with one more in the works, along
with the high likelihood of an internet hub. The franchise fees paid to the city on the electricity
consumed by data centers and other high usage commercial customers are tremendous, in
addition to the property taxes such developments pay.

* The city has several mixed-use developments either underway or soon to break ground. These
developments encompass approximately 1600 residential units and several hundreds of millions
of dollars of commercial investment.

The City of Hampton Georgia has strategically planned to diversify its tax base and thusly reduce
vulnerability in case of a sharp downturn in the economy. Not only did the City implement a property
millage rate, but it also took dramatic steps through zoning measures to change the very makeup of its
tax digest. For decades the city tax digest was roughly 80% residential. Residential properties require
significantly more resources to properly provide government services as opposed to commercial
properties. The city is undergoing a significant period of growth. resulting in a marked shift in the
residential - commercial ratio of its digest. There will be over $3.5B worth of growth in the Hampton
commercial tax digest within the next two years.

The city has also taken significant measures to address long needed infrastructure improvements. along
with ensuring the fiscal health and sustainability of its enterprise fund, all while maintaining
competitively low utility rates for its citizens. In short. the city continues to be on a sound and stable
trajectory.

Awards and Ackrnowledgements

The City of Hampton, Georgia applied and received the Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
for its consideration for the Fiscal Year 2023 annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR). To be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City of Hampton, Georgia must publish an easiy readable
and efficiently organized ACFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and
appropriate program requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year
only. However, we believe that our current ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting Program's requirements. and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for the City’s second certificate.

The City of Hampton, Georgia applied and received its second GFOA's Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award for its annual budget document dated March 31, 2023. To receive the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award, the City of Hampton, Georgia’s budget document had to be judged
proficient as a policy document, a financial plan. an operations guide. and a communications device.
The City of Hampton will continue to apply for this award annually.

Our mission is to deliver high quality. responsive and effective municipal services to those who live, work. dc business and visit our community
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skill, effort, and dedication of
the entire staff of the Finance and Administration Department. We wish to thank all City of Hampron,
Georgia departments, the City’s Financial Advisor, and our independent auditors, Fulton & Kozak for
their assistance in providing the data and review necessary to prepare this report. Credit also is due to
the Mayor and the Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City of Hampton, Georgia's finances.

Respeetfully submitted,
d /;/f './’/; / /)\\ LL

Alex S. Cohilas, CPM Lenox M. Forsythe,
City Manager CPA, CGMA, CFE

Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Hampton, Georgia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Hampton, Georgia (the “City™) as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Hampton, Georgia as of September
30, 2024 and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, ARPA Fund, and the City of Hampton Urban
Redevelopment Agency (“COHURA™) Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller general of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of City of Hampton, Georgia, and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
cvents, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Hampton, Georgia’s ability
to continue as a going concemn for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and



therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion 1s expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about City of Hampton, Georgia’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 13, the Schedule of Changes in the City’s Net Pension
Liability and Related Ratios on pages 55 and 56, and the Schedule of City Contributions on pages 57 and
58 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of Hampton, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, the budgetary comparison schedules, and the Schedule of Projects Constructed
with Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements.
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Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the budgetary comparison schedules, and the Schedule of
Projects Constructed with Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax are fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the other information,
and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued a report dated March 30, 2025
on our consideration of City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal controls over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmental
Auditing Standards in considering City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

7;\% r/%jz LLC

Morrow, Georgia
March 30, 2025



CITY OF HAMPTON
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management on the City of Hampton, we offer readers of the City of Hampton’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Hampton for fiscal year ended September
30, 2024. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with their review of the
financial statements.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Hampton exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at September 30, 2024 by $56,805,314. Of this amount unrestricted net position,
$9,743,469 may be used to meel the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The
$9,743.469 in unrestricted net position is further allocated $7,705,419 to governmental-type activities and
$2.038.050 to business-type activities.

e The total net position increased by $6,670,220. Of this amount a net increase of 55,466,946 was associated
with governmental activities, and an increase of $1,203,274 associated with business-type activities.

e As of the close of the current fiscal period, the City of Hampton's governmenta! funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $24,340,060, an increase of 54,688,507 in comparison with the prior year. Of this
amount $27,830 is non-spendable, $12,715,449 is restricted, $173,783 is committed, $479,847 is assigned,
and $10,943,151 is unassigned, The unassigned of $10,943.151 consists of various asscts netted against
their respective liabilities. See pages 17-18 for a detail and page 19 for a reconciliation to the governmental
activities net position.

e It is anticipated that the business-type activities’ restricted net position of 51,831,409 will be used for
improvements and expansion of the City’s water and sewer facilities. and the restricted balance of S371.119
will be used for debt service payment on combined utility system revenue series 2024 bonds.

e Al the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $10,943,151 or 147.3
percent of total General Fund expenditures, including transfers to other funds.

e The City of Hampton's total debt obligations (including accrued compensated absences, pension liability,
COHURA 2024 revenue bonds. and combined utility system 2024 revenue bonds) increased to a total of
$9,005.023.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hampton’s basic financial
statements. The City of Hampton’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Hampton’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal years.



CITY OF HAMPTON
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Government-wide financial statements — continued.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Cily that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the City of Hampton include general government, public safety and courts, highways and streets, parks
and recreation, community development, economic development, and code enforcement. The business-type
activities of the City are water and sewer, solid waste management and electrical supply.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 16 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City of Hampton can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near tenm inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal period. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemnment-wide financial statements. it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between the two.

The City maintains six major govemmental funds. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund,
ARPA Fund, SPLOST V Fund, TSPLOST Fund, COHURA Fund, and Capital Improvements Fund. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for these major funds.

The City of Hampton adopts an annual budget for all of its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements
have been provided for the General Fund, ARPA Fund, and COHURA Fund on pages 23 through 25, respectively,
to demonstrate compliance with the fiscal year 2024 budget. An annual budget for the non-major funds and a project
length budget for the SPLOST Capital Projects Funds have been adopted by the City and are presented in the
budgetary comparison schedules.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 17 through 22 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses a utilities enterprise
fund to account for its water and sewer, solid waste management and electrical supply activities. The City’s Ulities

Enterprise Fund is a major fund.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail.

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 29 of this report.



CITY OF HAMPTON
MANAGEMENT"’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Notes to the financial statements, The notes provide additional information thay js essential (o a fiy)) understanding
of the data provided in the sovernment-wide and fund financial statemens, The notes 1o the financial siatements

Supplementary information. [n addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this report also
Presents certain other supplementary information which consists of nonmajor combining statements, individyal
financial statements, and budgetary comparison schedules.

Government-wige Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a usefyl indicator of a govemment's financial position. Ag
September 30, 2024, the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
Fesources by $56.805.314. The City's net position reflects jis investment in capital assets (56.6 pereent), less any
related debt used 1o acquire those assets that are sl outstanding. Capital assers are used to provide services to
citizens and they are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of
related debt, i should be noted that the resources needed 1o repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Of the total net position. S14.917.977
(26.3 percent) js restricted for capital projects and other specified activities and §9,742.469 (172 percent) is
unrestricted.  allocated between  ihe governmental  activitjes (87,705.419) and the busincss-typc activities
(82.038.050).

City of Hampton’s Net Position

Governmental
Aclivities
2024 2023 Change
S 22,866,685 S 4,916,071

Current and other assets S 27,782,756
Capital assets 20435247 16.653.033 3.782.214
Total assers 48.218.003 39.519.718 8.698.285
Deferred outflows of resources 439.035 526,334 (87.299)
__—————__________ \
Current liabilities 1,644,101 1,875,765 (231.664)
Long-term liabilities 4,193,557 1.454.816 2.738.741
. I ___—————-‘____L_:__ __——————J__-:___ '_—————L_______
Total liabilities 5.837.658 3.330.581 2,507.077
Deferred inflows of resources 2.068.710 1.431.747 636,963
— 2068710 —  1.431.747 — 636,96
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 20,329,802 16,457,376 3.872.426
Restricted 12,715,449 8.893 883 3,821,566
Unrestricted 7.705419 9.932 465 {3.227.0461
Total net position S 40.750,670 S .35.283.724 S 5,466,946




City of Hampton’s Net Position — Continued

Business-type

Activities
202 2023 Change

Current and other assets $ 9,918,970 $ 6,153,707 $ 3,765,263
Capital assets 11.814.066 12.502.384 (688.318)
Total assets 21.733.036 18.656.091 3.076.945
Deferred outflows of resources 179,620 205,135 (25,515)
Current liabilities 1,443,538 2,084,196 (640,658)
Long-term liabilities 4.401.077 1913212 2.487.865
Total liabilities 5.844615 3.997.408 1.847.207

Deferred inflows of resources 15,397 12.448 949

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 11,814,066 10,395,592 1,418,474
Restricted 2,202,528 2,779,955 (577,427)
Unrestricted 2.038.050 1.675.823 362,227

Total net position 5 16054644 S____ 14851370 S 1.203274

Total
202 2023 Change

Current and other assets S 37,701,726 S 29,020,392 S 8,681,334
Capital assels 32.249.313 29155417 3.093.896
Total assets 69.951.039 58.175.809 11.775.230
Deferred outflows of resources 618,655 731.469 (112.814)
Current liabiljties 3,087,639 3,959,961 (872,322)
Long-term liabilities 8.594.634 3.368.028 5.226.606
Total liabilities 11.682.273 7.327.989 4,354,284

Deferred inflows of resources 2.082.107 1.444.195 637912

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 32,143,868 26,852,968 5,290,900
Restricted 14,917,977 11,673,838 3,244,139
Unrestricted 9.743 469 11.608.288 (1.864.819)

Total net position 5____ 56805314 S 50.135.094 S__ 6,670,220

A portion of the net position (514,917.977) represents resources thar are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($9,743,469) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.



City of Hampton’s Change in Net Position
(In millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue:

Program Revenues —
Charges for services $ 16 § 08 $ 92 § 83 § 108 % 9.1
Capital grants and contributions 5.1 5.6 1.4 0.0 6.5 5.6

General Revenues —
Sales taxes 1.4 34 0.0 0.0 1.4 34
Property taxes 3.3 1.2 0.0 0.0 33 1.2
Other taxes 1.6 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.6 1.5
Interest 0.5 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.6 0.5
Other 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.1
Contributions 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
Total Revenues 13.7 13.1 10.7 8.4 24.4 214

Expenses:

General government 2.3 2.1 0.0 0.0 23 2.1
Public safety and courts 2.8 2.6 0.0 0.0 2.8 2.6
Highways and streets 1.7 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.7 1.5
Parks and recreation 0.6 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.4
Planning/Community development 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.7
Economic development/Main Street 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.5
Sewer 0.0 0.0 1.6 1.3 1.6 1.3
Water 0.0 0.0 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.2
Solid waste 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.8
Electric 0.0 0.0 4.5 4.3 4.5 4.3
Total Expenses 8.6 7.8 9.1 8.7 17.7 16.5
Increase in net position before transfers 5.1 53 1.6 (0.3) 6.7 4.9
Transfers 0.4 0.4 (0.4) (0.4) 0.0 0.0
Net change in net position 5.5 5.7 1.2 (0.7) 6.7 49
Net position — beginning of the year 353 29.6 14.9 15.6 50.1 45.2
Net position —end of year S_40.8 §5_353 S_16.1 S_149 S_56.8 §_50.1

e Decrease in Millage from &5 to 4.0 and an offset increase in the Tax Digest from $270M to $361M (a 34%
increase) resulted in net property tax revenue of $258.891

e  Due (o increased traffic and improved road conditions throughout the City, $119.065 of more public safety
citations were issued.

o The Target development $553,725 revenue generated by the Tax Abatement Program and authorized by an
intergovernmental agreement was transfer to the City from the Hampton Development Authority.



o  Prior years Transfers [or various Stormwater projects and several Road Paving projects that were funded
through reserve drawdown were 90% completed in prior year resulted in less transfer out expenditures of
S1,747.607.

s In bond financing program, proceeds of $3,010,170 net of cost associated with Series 2024 bond issuance
received.

e The planned pay study upgrade across departments resulted i $332,216 of payroll and benefit costs
upswing.

e An average 22% cost increase throughout the deparmments increased cost by $468,056.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Hampton’s net position by $5.466.946.

EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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Business—type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $1,203.274.

EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES-BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITES
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Hampton used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with f{inance
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The purpose of the City's governmental fund financial statements is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal period.

At Seplember 30, 2024 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $24,340,060, an
increase of S4,688,507 in comparison to the prior year. Of this amount, $10.943,151 (45.0 percent) is unassigned
fund balances, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion, and $27,830 of fund balance is non-
spendable from prepaid assets. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay for capital items most of which is funded by the proceeds
of the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax, Development Impact Fees, and Bond Proceeds ($12,268,167); 2) for
Police Activities (528,474); 3) for Hotel/Motel (549.462); 4) for Federal and State programs (S330,038); 5) for
Capital Projects ($173,783); 6) for Downtown Development Authority, and Hampton Development Authority
($479.847); and (7) for debt service (539,308).



The General Fund is the City’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance
of the general fund was $10,943,151 (97.0 percent) of the total fund balance of S11.282,319. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 147.3 percent of the total general fund expenditures and
transfers out, while total fund balance represents 151.9 percent of that same amount.

The City collected a total of $3,330.739 in Local Option Sales Taxes for 2024, a decrease of 3.0% from 2023. Fines
and forfeitures increased by 22.9% to $648,133 in 2024. Overall, the City’s general fund revenuc increased by
$682,449. At the same time, the expenditures increased by $800,445 from 2023 amounts. The current year fund
balance of the City’s general fund increased by $1,560,084. The prior year fund balance decreased by $652.252.

The City of Hampton received $2.315,715 in Special Purpose Local Option Sales Taxes in 2024. Major expenditures
during 2024 of the SPLOST funds were: 1) Street projects ($1,623,399); 2) park projects ($458,880); 3) public
utility projects ($S418,514); 4) public safety equipment and vehicles ($322.366): and 5) gateway signage and
landscape designs ($33,333).

The City of Hampton received $1,941,689 in Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Taxes in 2024
Major expenditures during 2024 of the TSPLOST funds were $753,334 for highways and street projects.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The utilities fund account for wastewater, water, sanitation, and electricity implemented a third phase of a third-
party rate study recommendation that increased utilities rates as of October 1, 2023, and resulted in an increase in
revenue of $945,706. This gain was depleted due to inflationary cost increases across the public works departments
of S418,638 and the net operating gain of $240,697 increased by S610,313 in comparison to the prior fiscal year
operating loss of $369.616. The increase of subdivision developments created a decisive increase in
sewer/water/electric contribution fees that went from $2,852 in fiscal year 2023 to $1,352,784 in fiscal year 2024, as
a result the change in net position went from a decrease of $746,344 in fiscal year 2023 to an increase in net position
of $1,203,274 in fiscal year 2024. The unrestricted net position of the proprictary fund at the end of the fiscal year
was a positive $2,038,050. Other factors conceming the finances of proprietary funds have already been addressed
in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds at the end of the fiscal year was §2,038,050. Other factors
concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-
type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were amendments to the original General Fund expenditures budget, however the overall budget did not
change. The total actual revenues exceeded budget by $651,425 and total actual expenditures came in at $482,024
under budget. In 2024, one (1) department insignificantly overspent in comparison to two departments in 2023, that
exceeded its budget totaling $1,582. Net transfers were $621,169 more than the budgeted amount resulting in a
positive net change of $637,060.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City is experiencing new growth and with it a wide range of opportunities to expand out current
infrastructure. The City’s infrastructure consists of water, sewer., electricity, stormwater, and roads. Over the past
five years the City has grown through annexation of undeveloped properties, expanding our city limits from
approximately 4 2 square miles to 10.2 square miles. These areas require new infrastructure investments by the City
and developers. The City utilizes water and sewer connection fees paid by the developer to upgrade and expand
services city-wide. Additionally, fees are levied that cover eleciric development services and system upgrades. The
City’s annual budget contains funds for capital projects, infrastructure system upgrades, and maintenance programs.
SPLOST V funds are utilized for water and sewer enhancements and road pavement projects. TSPLOST revenues
fund road resurfacing projects, major transportation and multipurpose trails projects, and intersection improvement



projects. Capital outlay funds cover water, sewer, and electrical systems, stormwater, and road paving. Revenue
bonds and grants including GDOT, LMIG, and CDBG funds are utilized for new infrastructure and road
improvement projects.

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities at September 30, 2024
amounts to $32,249,313 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land.
buildings. improvements, automobiles and equipment. sidewalks, bridges and roads.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
° 2,324,651 for general, public utilities, street, and parks infrastructure
2,144,186 for public utilities and street construction in progress

372,748 for police and water systems vehicles
203,947 for general, police, and public utilities equipment and vehicles

v w

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 7.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $9,005,023 in outstanding debt consisting of the
following:

City of Hampton’s Outstanding Debt

Balance

Governmental Activities —

Accrued compensated absences ) 176,107

Net pension liability 1,113,922

Bonds 3.100.000

Total governmental activities 4.390.029
Business-Type Activities —

Accrued compensated absences 60,851

Net pension liability 434,143

Bonds 4.120.000

Total business-type activities 4.614.994

City total S__9.005,023

The City’s 1otal-term debt increased by $4.817.987. The City financed its infrastructure improvements and
expansions through the issuance of COHURA bonds and Utilities Revenue Bonds. Additional information on the
City’s long-term debt can be found in note 8.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Hampton's finances, comply with
finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the City's commitment 1o public accountability. Questions
concerning this report or requests for additional information can be obtained by contacting the City at (770) 946-
4306 or at the following address:

City of Hampton, Georgia
Finance Department
17 East Main Street South
Hampton, GA 30228



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,190,695 $ 1,177,329 $ 12,368,024
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible)
Taxes 2,457,266 - 2,457,266
Accounts - 665,230 665,230
Fines 24,493 - 24,493
Loan 153,656 - 153,656
Intergovernmental 900,871 - 900,871
Materials and supplies inventory (net of allowance) - 1,738,864 1,738,864
Prepaid items 27,830 15,019 42,849
Restricted cash 13,027,945 6,322,528 19,350,473
Non-depreciable capital assets 5,988,358 - 5,988,358
Depreciable capital assets, net 14.446.889 11.814.066 26.260.955
Total assets $ 48.218.003 $ 21.733.036 $.69.951.039
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension $ 439,035 $ 179.620 $_ 618.655
Total deferred outflows of resources $ 439,035 $ 179,620 $_ 618.655
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Operating $ 273,829 $ 409,644 $ 683,473
Capital 105,445 - 105,445
Bank overdraft 235 - 235
Accrued liabilities —
Wages 78,100 32,995 111,095
Customer deposits - 680,744 680,744
Interest 39,269 45,052 84,321
Other 25,674 61,186 86,860
Unearned revenue 925,077 - 925,077
Long-term liabilities —
Due within one year
Bonds payable 110,000 175,000 285,000
Compensated absences 86,472 38,917 125,389
Due in more than one year
Bonds payable 2,990,000 3,945,000 6,935,000
Compensated absences 89,635 21,934 111,569
Net pension liabilities 1.113.922 434.143 1.548.065
Total liabilities $_5.837.658 $_5.844.615 $.11.682.273

See accompanying notes to financial statements

14



Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension

Property taxes

CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION — CONTINUED

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for —
Capital projects
Debt service
Federal and state programs

Tourism

Law enforcement

Unrestricted

Total net position

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 34,374 $ 13,397 $ 47,771
2.034.336 - 2.034.336
$_2.068.710 $ 13,397 $_2.082.107
$ 20,329,802 $ 11,814,066 $ 32,143,868
12,268,167 1,831,409 14,099,576
39,308 371,119 410,427
330,038 - 330,038
49,462 - 49,462
28,474 - 28,474
7.705.419 2.038.050 9.743.469
$_40.750.670 $_16.054.644 $.56.805.314

See accompanying notes to financial statements

15
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
ARPA
General Fund SPLOST V TSPLOST
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,691,415 $ - 8 - 3 -
Restricted cash 334,895 844,886 4,151,698 3,216,939
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Taxes 2,454,948 - - -
Fines 24,493 - - -
Loan - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 581,598 319,273
Prepaid items 27,830 - - -
Due from other funds 85.932 - - -
Total assets $.13.619.513 $__ 844886 $_4.733296 $__ 3.536.212
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Operating $ 198390 § - 3 - 8 74,483
Capital - 47,401 29,035 29,009
Bank overdraft - - - -
Accrued liabilities
Wages 78,100 - - -
Other 25,674 - - -
Due to other funds 694 44,628 - -
Unearned revenue - 752.857 - -
Total liabilities 302.858 844.886 29.035 103,492
Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes 2.034.336 - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 2.034.336 - - -
Fund balances
Non-spendable: prepaid items 27,830 - - -
Restricted: Capital projects 243,556 - 4,704,261 3,432,720
Restricted: Federal and state programs - - - -
Restricted: Tourism - B - -
Restricted: Law enforcement 28,474 - - -
Restricted: Debt service 39,308 - - -
Committed: Capital projects from reserve - - - -
Assigned: Downtown Development Authority - - - -
Assigned: Hampton Development Authority - - - -
Unassigned 10.943.151 - - -
Total fund balances 11.282.319 - 4.704.261 3.432.720
Total liabilities and fund balances $_13.619.513 $__ 844,886 $_4.733296 $_ 3.536.212

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET — CONTINUED
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Other
Capital Governmental
COHURA limprovement Funds Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - § 173,0804 § 326,191 § 11,190,695
Restricted cash 3,051,709 - 1,427,818 13,027,945
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)
Taxes - - 2,318 2,457,266
Fines - - - 24,493
Loan - - 153,656 153,656
Intergovernmental - - - 900,871
Prepaid items - - - 27,830
Due from other funds - 694 - 86.626
Total assets $ 3051709 S 173,783 S__1.909983 $_27.869.382
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Operating $ 235 § - S 956 § 274,064
Capital - - - 105,445
Accrued liabilities
Wages - - - 78,100
Other - - - 25,674
Due to other funds 41,304 - - 86,626
Unearned revenue - - 172,220 925.077
Total liabilities 41,539 - 173,176 1.494.986
Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes - - - 2.034.336
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 2.034 336
Fund balances
Non-spendable: prepaid items - - - 27,830
Restricted: Capital projects 3,010,170 - 877,460 12,268,167
Restricted: Federal and state programs - - 330,038 330,038
Restricted: Tourism - - 49.462 49.462
Restricted: Law enforcement - - - 28.474
Restricted: Debt service - - - 39,308
Committed: Capital projects from reserve - 173,783« - 173,783
Assigned: Downtown Development Authority - - 381,829 381,829
Assigned: Hampton Development Authority - - 98,018 98,018
Unassigned - - - 10943151
Total fund balances 3,010,170 173.783 1.736.807 24,340,060
Total liabilities and fund balances $_3.051.709 S 173,783 S__1.909983 §_27,869,382

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances — total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and, therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Net pension liability

Deferred outflows of resources related to the recording
of the net pension liability are recognized as expense
over time and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows of resources related to the recording
of the net pension liability are not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, they are not reported
in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Accrued interest expense
Bonds payable
Accrued compensated absences

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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S 24,340,060

20,435,247

(1,113,922)

439,035

(34,374)

(39,269)
(3,100,000)
(176,107)

540,750,670



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — CONTINUED
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Issuer fee

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Municipal court
Public safety
Highways and streets
Parks and recreation
Planning/Community development
Economic development/Main Street
Capital:
General government
Public safety
Public utilities
Highways and streets
Parks and recreation
Economic development/Main Street
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Issuance of bonds

Gain on sale of assets

Total

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance — beginning of year
Fund balances — end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements

ARPA
General Fund SPLOSTV_ _ TSPLOST

S 6372366 S x 8 - S -
: 477,965 2,315,715 1,941,689
648,133 ’ - -
306,543 = . -
164.474 2 2 <
327.279 - 70,799 44,130
206,729 . . :
8,025,524 477.965 2.386.514 1.985.819
2,272,375 . . .
332,128 . . -
2,246,893 - - :
878,457 ; - ;
328,863 - : .
566,922 - - 2
296,418 - - .
22,599 . 23,541 -
60,629 . 312,119 -
: 506,901 355,874 -
2 : 1,623,399 753,334
= 5 458 880 -
63,251 E 2 :
7.068.535 506,901 2,773,813 753,334
956,989 (28.936) (387.299) 1.232 485
947,629 = = :
(360,425) : : s
15,891 - - .
603,095 - - -
1,560,084 $  (28,936) (387,299) 1.232.485
9722235 §__ 28936 5,091,560 2.200.235
$.11.282319 § - $_4704261 S__3.432.720
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - CONTINUED

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
Other
Capital Governmental
COHURA Improvement Funds Total
REVENUES
Taxes 5 = 35 - % 21124 § 6,393,490
Intergovemmcntal - - 134,825 4,870,194
Fines and forfeitures - - - 648,133
Licenses and permits - - - 306,543
Charges for services - - B 164,474
Investment iIncome 9,080 - 31,788 483,076
Miscellaneous - - - 206,729
Issuer fees - - 593,725 593.725
Total revenues 9.080 781.462 13,666,364
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - - 2,272,375
Municipal court - B - 332,128
Public safety - - - 2,246,893
Highways and streets = - - 878,457
Parks and recreation - - - 328,863
Planning/Community development 98,910 - 75,236 741,068
Economic development/Main Street - B 91,833 388,251
Capital:
General government - - 9,792 55,932
Public safety - - 10,247 382,995
Public utilities - 20,819 62,640 946,234
Highways and streets - 612,710 141,271 3,130,714
Parks and recreation 134.503 = 593,383
Economic development/Main Street - - 127,108 190,359
Total expenditures 98.910 768.032 518.127 12.487.652
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (89.830) (768.032) 263,335 1.178.712
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 150,000 210,425 1,308,054
Transfers out - B (553,725) (914,150)
Issuance of bonds 3,100,000 - - 3,100,000
Gain on sale of assets - - - 15.891
Total 3.100.000 150.000 (343.,300) 3.509.795
Net change in fund balances 3,010,170 (618,032) (79,965) 4,688,507
Fund balance — beginning of year - 791.815 1.816.772 19.651.553
Fund balances — end of year $_ 3,010,170 $ 173.783 S_1 736.807 S_24 34(.060

See accompanying notes to financi

al statements



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ported for governmental activities in the

Amounts re
statement of activities are different because:
Net changes in fund balances — total governmemal funds S 4,688,507
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assels is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the
current period.
Capital outlay for the current period 5,001,676
Depreciation expense for the current period (1.218.294) 3.783,382
Proceeds from issuance of bonds. (3,100,000)
The net pension liability did not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore is not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. 139,745
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.
Accrued interest (39,269)
(4,251)

Compensated absences

Governmental funds report proceeds from the sale of capital assets,
whereas in the statement of activities, a gain or loss will be reported.
Therefore, the change in fund balance will differ from the change in
net position by the net book value of the capital assets sold. (1,168)

S_5.466.946

Change in net position of govemmemal activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Taxes S 6,234,325 $ 6,234,325 $ 6372366 $ 138,041
Fines and forfeitures 400,000 400,000 648,133 248,133
Licenses and permits 176,926 176,926 306,543 129,617
Charges for services 218,527 218,527 164,474 (54,053)
Investment income 270,053 270,053 327.279 57,226
Miscellaneous 74,268 74,268 206.729 132,461
Total revenues 7.374.099 7.374.099 8,025,524 651,425
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Mayor 37,131 37,131 25,902 11.229
City council 181,231 181,231 135,313 45918
City manager 288,399 288,399 278,357 10,042
City clerk 113,140 126,640 125,138 1,502
Administration 551,566 551.566 540,021 11,545
Financial services 377,398 377,398 343,620 33,778
Information technology 247,739 247,739 249,321 (1,582)
Human resources 170,195 176,195 173,477 2,718
Facilities 410,785 410,785 401,226 9.559
Municipal court 263,605 333,605 332,128 1.477
Public safety 2,312,878 2,252,249 2,246,893 5,356
Highways and streets 983.641 983,641 878,457 105,184
Parks and recreation 425213 425213 328,863 96,350
Planning/Community development 811,796 663,796 566,922 96,874
Economic development/Main Street 319,817 319,817 296,418 23,399
Capital:
General government
Information technology 50,525 50,525 22,599 27,926
Facilities - - - -
Public safety 5,500 60,629 60,629 -
Highways and streets - - - -
Parks and recreation - - - B
Economic development/Main Street - 64.000 63,251 749
Total expenditures 7,550,559 7.550.559 7.068.535 482,024
(Deficiency) Excess of revenues
(under) over expenditures (176.,460) (176.460) 956.989 1,133,449
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 394,987 394,987 947,629 552,642
Transfers out (428,952) (428.952) (360,425) 68,527
Gain on sale of assets - - 15.891 15.891
Total other financing sources (uses) (33,965) (33,965) 603.095 637.060
Net change in fund balances - reserve drawdown (210,425) (210,425) 1,560,084 1,770,509
Fund balance — beginning of year 9.722.235 9.722.235 9,722,235 -
Fund balance — end of year S_ 9511810 S__9511.810 §_11.282.319 $__ 1,770,509

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
ARPA FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ - §_ 477,965 $_ 477965
Total revenues - - 477.965 477.965
EXPENDITURES
Capital:
Public utilities 1.362.264 1,362,264 506.901 855,363
Total expenditures 1.362.264 1.362.264 506,901 855.363
Net change in fund balances (1,362.264) (1,362,264) (28.936) 1,333,328
Fund balance — beginning of year 28,936 28.936 28.936 -
Fund balance — end of year S_(1.333,328) $_(1.333.328) § - $_1.333.328

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CITY OF HAMPTON URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES
Investment income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Planning/Community development
Debt service:
Interest

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Issuance of bonds
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change n fund balances

Fund balance — beginning of year

Fund balance — end of year

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
A 9.080 9,080 9.080 -
9,080 9.080 9.080 -
98,910 98,910 98,910 -
39.304 39,304 - 39.304
138.214 138.214 98.910 39.304
(129.134) (129,134) (89.830) 39,304
3.100.000 3.100,000 3.100.000 -
3,100.000 3.100.000 3.100.000 -
2,970,866 2,970,866 3,010,170 39,304
S__2.970.866 $__2.970.866 $_3.010,170 S 39.304

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —
Accounts
Materials and supplies inventory (net of allowance)
Prepaid items
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Restricted assets: Cash
Capital assets — depreciable
Plant and distributions systems
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pensions

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable —
Operating
Accrued liabilities —
Wages
Compensated absences
Customer deposits
Interest
Other
Bonds payable — current portion
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Compensated absences
Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pensions

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted: Capital projects
Restricted: Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
UTILITIES FUND

b 1,177,329

665,230
1,738,864

15019

3.596.442

- st =

6,322,528

22,471,433

1,987,302

667,133
(13.311.802)

11,814,066

18.136.594
§___ 21.733.036

S 179.620

$ 409,644

32,995
38,917
680,744
45,052
61,186

175,000

1,443,538

21,934
3,945,000

434,143

4.401,077

— e e

$___ 5.844.615

$ 13397

$ 11,814,066
1,831,409

371,119
2,038,050
$ 16,054,644

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Purchases for resale
Personal services and benefits
Contractual services
Depreciation
Supplies
Other
Total operating expenses

Income from operations
Non-operating revenues:
Investment income
Interest expense
Loss before contributions and transfers
Capital Contribution
Sewer
Water
Electric
Transfers out
Change in net position

Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

UTILITIES FUND

S 9.161,841
59412

9,221,253

3,946,366
1,766,839
2,004,708
732,173
474,338
56,132

————ee

8.980.556

240,697

67,922
(64.225)

244394

606,967
252,613
493,204

(393.904)
1,203,274

14.851.370

—_— e~ e o

S 16.054.644



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earned

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of bonds
Repayment of bonds payable
Interest paid
Capital contributions

Net cash provided by capital financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF YEAR
Classified As

Current assets
Restricted assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

UTILITIES FUND

$ 9,205,454
(7,206,117)
(1.364.420)

634.917

67.922

(393.904)

(43,855)
4,120,000

(2,106,792)

(64,225)
1.352.784

3257912
3.566,847
3.933.010

S 7.499.857

A |

177,329
6.3

71,
22.528

5 7499.857



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
UTILITIES FUND

NET OPERATING INCOME S 240,697

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depreciation expense 732,173
Increase in receivables (10,541)
Increase in inventory (211,137)
Decrease in prepaid items 23,262
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources 25,515
Decrease in accounts payable (147,080)
Increase in accrued salaries 26,019
Decrease in other customer deposits (5,258)
Increase in accrued interest 41,555
Increase in other accrued expense 8,200
Decrease in net pension liability (89,437)
Increase in deferred inflows of resources 949
Total adjustments 394.220
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES S 634.917

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Basis of Presentation

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City
are discussed below.

B. The Reporting Entity

The City operates under a council/mayor form of government and provides the following services:
public safety, judicial, highways and streets, planning and zoning, culture and recreation, public
works improvements, community development, and general and administrative services. In addition,
the City operates public utilities (water, sewer, stormwater, electricity and sanitation) for the
incorporated and immediate surrounding areas.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14 defines the reporting entity for
determining which potential component units should be included in a primary government’s financial
statements. Inclusion is based on financial accountability or the fact that exclusion would make the
financial statements misleading or incomplete. The criteria for determining financial accountability
includes appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the
City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits or to impose specific financial burdens on the City. The City’s blended component
units are reported as if they are a part of the City because their sole purpose is to provide services to
the City. Management of the City has operational responsibilities for the two component units and
the city council has to vote to approve their governing body applicants.

Blended Component Units:

Downtown Development Authority (DDA) — Although it is legally separate from the City, the DDA
directs economic development activities in the central business district of Hampton. Separate
financial statements are not prepared for this component unit.

Hampton Development Authoritv (HDA) — On August 11, 2020, the City formed the HDA, a non-
profit corporation that is presented as a City special revenue fund that was created under the State of
Georgia Development Authority law. The HDA is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors
consisting of members of the City and/or Henry County, all appointed and approved by a majority
vote of the City Council of Hampton. Although it is legally separate from the City, the HDA develops
trade, commerce, industry, and employment opportunities within the City through the recruitment of
projects that promote the economic development, revitalization, and growth of the City. Separate
financial statements are not prepared for this component unit.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
B. The Reporting Entity — (Continued)

City of Hampton Urban Redevelopment Agency (COHURA) — On August 8, 2023, the City formed
the COHURA, a public body corporate and politic for the purpose of exercising the “urban
redevelopment project powers™ defined in section 36-61-17(b) of the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated (O.C.G.A). The primary purpose is to rehab and redevelop pockets of blighted areas that
exist in the City. COHRA is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors consisting of the Mayor
and members of the City Council. The Hampton City Council approved an intergovernmental
contract whereby the COHURA agreed to complete and execute its adopted Urban Redevelopment
Plan and issue bonds related thereto, and the City agreed to make payments to COHURA in an
amount equal to debt service due and payable on such bonds. Although it is legally separate from the
City, the COHURA is presented as a blended component of the City. Separate financial statements
are not prepared for this component unit.

C. Basic Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position, presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activities of the City at year end. The statement is presented on a consolidated basis
and is reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and
receivables as well as Jong-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position is reported in three parts
— net investment in capital assets; restricted: and unrestricted. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental activities and for
business-type activities of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program, or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City
does not allocate indirect costs. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods
or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on grants that is
required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
governmental program or business activity self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
City.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (franchise taxes, sales or use
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income. etc.). The City does not allocate indirect costs.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in
the City’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
D. Basic Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Government resources
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Fund financial statements are
designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level. The focus of
governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund 1s
presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.
The various funds are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into the following fund

types:

Governmental Fund Types — Governmental funds are those through which most governmental
functions of the City are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses. and
balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental
funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned
to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

ARPA Fund — The ARPA Fund is a special revenue fund that is used to account for the
financial resources provided and subsequently expended from the American Rescue Plan grant
received from the federal government.

SPLOST V Capital Project Fund — The SPLOST V Capital Project Fund accounts for capital
projects financed by a one percent sales and use tax.

TSPLOST Capital Project Fund — The TSPLOST Capital Project Fund accounts for capital
projects financed by a one percent sales and use tax.

COHURA Fund — The COHURA Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for activities
related to the rehab and redevelopment of blighted areas as adopted by COHURA Urban
Development Plan.

Capital Improvements Fund — The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for the
expenditures of resources for various capital projects.

Proprietary Fund Type — Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating
income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The City’s proprietary fund is
classified as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The following is the City’s major proprietary
fund:
Utilities Fund — The Ultilities Fund is used to account for the revenues generated from the
charges for electricity, water, sewer, wastewater and sanitation services provided to the
residential and commercial users of the City.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
E. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of the City are included on the statement of net position.

Fund Financial Statements — All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from
the manner in which the governmental activities of government-wide financial statement are
prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide and the statements for
governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the statement of net position. The statement of changes in revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (1.e.. expenses) in net total
assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the City finances and meets the
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

On the proprietary fund’s financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly from
the operations of the activity, i.e. charges to customers or users who purchase or use the goods or
services of that activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to provide the goods or
services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are items such as investment income and interest
expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the activity.

F.  Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements
made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual
Government-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting;
proprietary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded
when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Available” means
collectible within the current period or within 60 days after period end. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general obligation long-term debt, if any, are recognized when due.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
F.  Basis of Accounting — (Continued)

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, state and federal grants, fines, interest revenue and
charges for services. Property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which those taxes are
assessed even if levied in an earlier period. Major revenues that are determined not to be susceptible
to accrual because they are either not available soon enough to pay liabilities of the current period or
are not objectively measurable include licenses, penalties and miscellaneous revenues which are
recorded as revenues when received in cash. Those revenues that are measurable but are not collected
within 60 days after period end are recorded as unearned revenues.

G. New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
— an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62”. This statement is to enhance accounting and
financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more
understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or
assessing accountability. The requirements of this statement are effective for accounting changes and
error corrections made in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023 (fiscal year 2024). The
standard had no significant effect on the City’s financial statements.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences”. This statement
requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used
and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. The
requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023
(fiscal year 2025). The City is evaluating the impact, if any. upon its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows upon adoption.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
H. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and cash
with fiscal agents. Investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchase are presented on the financial statements as cash equivalents. As of September 30, 2024, the
City had cash equivalents in money market accounts.

1. Restricted Assets: Cash

Restricted assets represent amounts which are required to be maintained pursuant to external
restrictions imposed by State and Federal Governments, applicable bond covenants, etc., relating to
impact fees for police, parks and recreation, sewer, water and electric tap charges; and if applicable,
debt service payments; funds received for specific purposes pursuant to State and Federal grants and
special purposes local option sales taxes.

J. Receivables

Property taxes were levied on July 25, 2024, based upon property values assessed as of January 1.
The City’s millage rate is levied on taxable property, which is assessed at 40% of estimated fair
market value. Tax bills were mailed on August 26, 2024, and payable on or before November 16.
2024, for the 2024 taxes. Property taxes levied in fiscal year 2024, were for use on expenditures in
fiscal year 2025 per an ordinance passed by the City Council. The City setup a deferred inflow for
the property taxes as of September 30, 2024.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

K. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost. Inventory consists of various repair and replacement items maintained by
the City’s Utilities Fund. Inventory as of year-end, including the applicable allowance for obsolete

items, 1s as follows:

Gross Allowance Net
Inventory S 2,012,682 S 273,818 $ 1,738,864

L. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit years beyond September 30, 2024, are
recorded as prepaid items and are expensed during the period benefited.

M. Capital Assets

General capital assets are capital assets which are associated with and generally arise from
governmental activities. They generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. General
capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of
net position but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the
proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government-wide
statement of net position and in the respective funds.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
M. Capital Assets — (Continued)

Capital assets which include property, plant equipment, machinery, vehicles, furniture and fixtures,
and infrastructure assets (e.g. streets, roads, sidewalks and pavements and similar items) purchased or
acquired with an estimated useful life in excess of one (1) year or more and an original cost of $5,000
or more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value as of the date received. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation
on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure 40-50 years
Utility distribution systems 30-50 years
Buildings and improvements 30-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 7-10 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles 5-10 years

The City only reports infrastructure assets purchased subsequent to December 31, 2001.
N. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely
manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds.
However, claims and judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental
funds are reported as liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for
payment during the current period. Long-term loans are recognized as a liability on the governmental
fund financial statements when due.

O. Revenues

Various taxes are billed and collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. Property
tax revenues are recognized in the period for which those taxes are assessed even if levied in an
earlier period. In applying GASB Statement No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes
liabilities and expense and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable
eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and unearned revenue by the
recipient.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
0. Revenues — (Continued)

The major categories of taxes collected comprise of property taxes, sales or use taxes as local option
sales tax (LOST), special purpose local option sales tax (SPLOST) and Transportation Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (TSPLOST), liquor and wine vendor and on-site sales tax, insurance
premium tax, franchise tax, motor vehicle ad valorem tax, real estate transfer tax and intangible asset
tax.

P. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund lability is incurred. Inventory costs are expensed
in the period used.

Q. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave and associated employee-related costs when
eamed (or estimated to be eamed) by the employee. The non-current portion (the amount estimated to
be used in subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a
reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentations. No liability is recorded for
non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

R. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to
the government-wide financial statements.

S. Fund Balances/Net Position
Fund Balance Classifications

In March 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund-tvpe Definitions. The objective of the statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied
and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type definitions. This statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government
is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
S. Fund Balances/Net Position — (Continued)

Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and
unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five categories (1) Non-spendable, (2) Restricted, (3)
Committed, (4) Assigned, and (5) Unassigned. Non-spendable find balances refer to amounts that are
not in spendable form or are legally required to remain intact. Restricted fund balances refer to
amounts that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions by either debt covenants, or laws
or regulations of other governments. Committed fund balances refer to amounts that can only be used
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council prior to the
end of the fiscal year. These balances are approved by the City Council during the budget approval
process. The same formal action is required to remove the limitation. Assigned fund balances refer to
amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Currently, the assigned fund balances are
associated with the authorities where the funds received are assigned to the operations of those
authorities. Unassigned fund balances refer to the residual net resources and are the excess of non-
spendable, restricted, committed, and assigned. Only the General Fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance. Fund expenditures and encumbrances are from restricted fund balance to
the extent of the restricted fund revenue and followed by committed then assigned and unassigned
fund balance.

To be executed at the monthly City Council public meeting on April 13, 2025, an ordinance will be
presented for approval providing authority pertaining to fund balances. Fund balances will be
classified as: (1) Nonspendable, (2) Restricted, (3) Committed, (4) Assigned, and (5) Unassigned
along with their descriptions, purposes and the level of authority to restrict, commit, and assign.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, and unassigned net
position could be used, the City considers committed funds to have been spent first, then assigned and
then unassigned.

Net Position

Equity for government-wide and proprietary fund statements is classified as net position and
displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted — Consists of assets with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external groups,
such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) taw

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — All other assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or *“net investment in
capital assets”.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
T. Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions
of capital assets, tap-on fees to the extent they exceed the cost of connection to the system, or from
grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

U. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

V. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the City’s General Fund, five special revenue funds,
and two capital project funds. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Formal budgetary
integration is employed as a management control device during the period.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to September, the City Manager presents a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following October 1*. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them. In addition, activities of the Enterprise Funds (water, sewer,
electric, and sanitation), and certain special revenue funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects program.

([}

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3 The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution

4. All budget revisions or changes must be approved as required by Georgia law and
administrative policy. All transfers of budgeted amounts between departments require the
approval of the City Council. This is consistent with the legal level of budgetary control as the
budget is adopted at the department level. Revisions that alter the total expenditure of any
department or fund must be approved by the Mayor and City Council. The approvals of the
City Manager, Finance Director and respective Department Director are required for line-item
revisions within a particular department budget. The Mayor and City Council made several
immaterial supplemental budget appropriations during the fiscal year.

s Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Final budget amounts are as amended in September, 2024.

6. Unexpended budget appropriations at period-end lapse.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
V. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting — (Continued)
Excess of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Over Appropriations

The following department/function overspent the final 2024 fiscal year budget:

General Fund — Current: General government: Information technology $ 1,582
Hotel/Motel Fund — Economic development/Main Street 17,807
DDA — Capital: Economic development/Main Street 27,108

In the future, the City will appropriately amend its budget to resolve over-expenditures.
W. Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
not employed by the City.

X. Pension Plans

The City provides a defined benefit pension plan to all eligible employees. It is the City’s policy to
fund this plan’s normal cost annually, as determined by actuarial valuation.

Y. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

GASB Statements No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources. Deferred Inflows
of Revenues, and Net Position and No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities
established accounting and financial reporting for deferred outflows/inflows of resources and the
concept of net position as the residual of all other elements presented in the statement of net position.

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of revenues, expenditures. and changes in fund balance will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Certain changes in the net pension liability are recognized as pension expense over time instead of all
being recognized in the year of occurrence. Experience gains result from periodic studies by the
City’s actuary which adjust the net pension liability for actual experience for certain trend
information that was previously assumed, for example the assumed dates of retirement of plan
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued)
Y. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources — (Continued)

members. These experience gains are recorded as deferred inflows of resources and are amortized
into pension expense over the expected remaining service lives of plan members. Changes in actuarial
assumptions which adjust the net pension liability are also recorded as deferred inflows of resources
and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining service lives of plan members.

The difference between projected investment return on pension investments and actual return on those
investments is also deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five-year period.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the City of Hampton Retirement Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Property taxes

Property taxes levied during the fiscal year 2024, were for use on expenditures in fiscal year 2025.
Therefore, the property tax receivable are accrued but the revenue is deferred at year-end.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The City reduces its exposure to this risk by requiring deposits of public funds to be
collateralized in accordance with State law. As of September 30, 2024, none of the deposits of the
City were subject to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The City’s financial policies authorize investments in any securities approved by the State of Georgia
for local governments. Authorized investments include certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements,
direct and agency obligations of the State of Georgia, and no-load mutual funds of direct obligations
of the United States. The City had no investments at September 30, 2024.

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. State statutes require all deposits and investments (other than federal
or state government instruments) to be collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S.
government, or bonds of public authorities, counties or municipalities. As of September 30, 2024,
none of the investments of the City were subject to custodial credit risk. The City does not have a
formal policy addressing credit risk.
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3. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

follows:
Gross Allowance Net

General Fund

Taxes $ 2,454,948 $ - $ 2,454,948

Fines 24,493 - 24,493
SPLOST V

Intergovernmental 581,598 - 581,598
TSPLOST

Intergovernmental 319,273 - 319.273
Other Governmental Funds

Taxes 2,318 - 2,318

Loan 153,656 - 153,656
Proprietary Fund

Accounts 987.769 322,539 665,230

Total S_4.524.055 $_ 322539 $_4.201516

4. FINES AND FORFEITURES (NET OF ALLOWANCE)

The City entered into a contract with ZSI Probation Services, Inc. to coordinate and provide direct
probation and rehabilitation programs and services to offenders sentenced by and under the
jurisdiction of the court. Court-ordered fines, restitution, and costs will be collected and paid to the
court on a monthly basis.

5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balance and transfers represent amounts transferred among funds to help finance various
construction projects, and meet cash flow requirements.

Interfund balances as of September 30, 2024, are as follows:

Due to:
General Capital
Fund Improvements
Due from:
General Fund $ - S 694
ARPA Fund 44,628 -
Urban Redevelopment Agency 41,304 -
Total $__85932 § 694

Due to General Fund for $41,304 is primarily related to the new COHURA Series 2024 Bond debt
service and $44,628 is the reclassified ARPA interest earned.
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5. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS — (Continued)
The outstanding balances between funds result from the time lag between the dates that 1) interfund
goods and services are provided, 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and 3)

payments between funds are made.

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2024, consisted of the following:

Transfers in:
Capital Downtown Hampton
General Improvement Development Development
Fund Fund Authority Authority Total
Transfers Out:
General Fund h - S 150,000 $ 100,000 S 110,425 § 360,425
Hampton Development
Authority 553,725 - - - 553,725
Proprietary Fund 393.904 - - - 393.904
Total $ 947629 S 150000 $__100.000 S__110.425 $_1.308.054

In fiscal year 2024, approximately $1.3 million was transferred between funds mainly for the utility
fund allocable general costs (such as general and personnel administration and franchise fees) to
reflect the actual cost of providing four categories of utility services (sewer, water, sanitation, and
electric), contribution funding to park lighting capital project, development abatement fees and
development authorities annual funding.

6. LITIGATION
During the ordinary course of business, the City has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits.

Management of the City is vigorously defending itself against the lawsuits and believes that the City
will be able to end the suits favorably.
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7.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2024 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment

Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows:

General government
Public safety and courts
Public works

Parks and recreation

Planning/Community development
Economic development/Main Street

Total depreciation expense
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
S 1.188.664 S - % - § 1,188,664
3.316.649 2,144,186 661,141 4,799.694
4,505,313 2.144.186 661,141 5.988.358
4393471 - - 4,393,471
3,745,284 - = 3,745,284
9,537,227 2,985,791 - 12,523,018

40,120 - - 40,120
225,692 - - 225,692
2,003,094 160,092 . 2,163,186
1.855.080 372.748 443,530 1.784.298
21,799.968 3.518.631 443 530 24 .875.069
1,549,725 151,187 1,700,912
2,388,554 195,122 - 2,583,676
2,928,139 469,039 - 3,397,178
34,745 709 - 35,454
209,092 3,321 - 212,413
1,074,518 209,239 - 1,283,757
1.467.475 189.677 442,362 1,214.790
0.652.248 1.218.294 442.362 10.428.180
12.147.720 2,300,337 1,168 14,446,889
$16.653.033 $4.444523 S_662309 $20.435247

S 115,557

210,991

696,846

181,241

4,739

8,920
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7.

CAPITAL ASSETS — (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2024 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $_ 291818 § - $_ 291818 § -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 291.818 - 291.818 -
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Distribution and collection system 22,179,615 291,818 - 22,471,433
Machinery and equipment 1,943,447 43,855 - 1,987,302
Vehicles 667.133 - - 667.133
Total capital assets being depreciated 24,790,195 335.673 - 25.125.868
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Distribution and collection system 10,576,796 611,730 - 11,188,526
Machinery and equipment 1,409,742 102,755 - 1,512,497
Vehicles 593.091 17.688 - 610.779
Total accumulated depreciation 12.579,629 732,173 - 13,311.802
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 12,210,566 (396,500) - 11.814.066
Business-type activities capital assets, net ~ $_12,502,384 $__ (396500) $__ 291,818 $_11.814,066

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the business-type activities as follows:

Sewer
Water
Electric

Total depreciation expense
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT
Changes in General Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities reported in the govemment—wide
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion
Governmental-Type Activities:
*Compensated absences ¢ 171,856 S 4251 3% .S 176,107 % 86,472
*Net pension liability 1,343,401 - 229,479 1.113.922 -
*Bonds payable - _3.100.000 - _3.100.000 110.000
Governmental-Type Activities 1,515,257 3,104,251 229479 4.390.029 196,472
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated absences 41.407 19,444 - 60,851 38917
Net pension liability 523580 - 89.437 434.143 -
Bonds payable 2106792 _4.1 20.000 2,106,792 4.l 20.000 175,000
Business-Type Activities 2,671,779 4139444 _2.196.229 4,614,994 213,917
Total S_4.187.036 $_7.243.695 $ 2425708 $ 9.005,023 § 410.389

* Typically liquidated with General Fund resources.

Governmental-Type Activities

On July 10, 2024, the COHURA issued Downtown Redevelopment and Public Infrastructure Project
Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series, 2024 (the “Taxable Series 2024 Revenue Bonds™). The annual
interest rate on the bonds is 5.63%, and the maturity date 1s April 1, 2030. The following is a
summary of the future minimum bond payments:

Year Principal Interest

2025 $ 110,000 § 126,534
2026 95,000 168,337
2027 100,000 162,989
2028 105,000 157,359
2029 110,000 151,447
2030 2,580,000 145,253

$_3.100.000 $ 911919

Interest incurred during the current year was $39,269.
Pledged Revenues
The COHURA and the City have an intergovernmental contract where the City has pledged the funds

to provide to the COHURA to cover the bond payments.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

8.

LONG-TERM DEBT — (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

In 2017, the City issued Combined Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (the
“Series 2016 Bonds™). The annual interest rate on the bonds is 2.00%, and the maturity date 1s June 1,
2026. These bonds were paid in full during year ended September 30, 2024.

On July 10, 2024, the City issued Combined Utility Revenue Bonds, Tax-Exempt Series 2024 (the
“Tax-Exempt Series 2024 Revenue Bonds™). The annual interest rate on the bonds is 4.86%, and the
maturity date is April 1, 2044. The following is a summary of the future minimum bond payments:

Year Principal Interest
2025 $ 175,000 S 145,168
2026 130,000 191,727
2027 135,000 185,409
2028 145,000 178,848
2029 150,000 171,801
2030-2034 875,000 741,393
2035-2039 1,105,000 507,870
2040-2044 1.405.000 211,653

§_4120000 $_2333.869
Interest incurred during the current year was $64,225.
Pledged Revenues

The City has pledged the utilities system revenues, net of operations and maintenance expenses, o
pay principal and interest on the outstanding Tax-Exempt Series 2024 Revenue Bonds, with
outstanding principal amount of $4,120,000 at September 30, 2024.

CONDUIT DEBT

The Hampton Development Authority issued taxable lease purchase revenue bonds for the express
purpose of providing capital financing to diverse businesses and community institutions that are not a
part of the Authority’s financial reporting entity. The conduit debt obligations bear the name of the
Hampton Development Authority; however, the HDA, nor the City, has any obligation for such debt
beyond the resources provided by the loans with businesses and institutions on whose behalf they are
issued. The revenue bonds and the interest thereon do not constitute a debt, a general obligation or a
pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or City. The obligation is payable solely from revenues
and assets pledged to the Authority for payment of such bonds.

During fiscal year 2024, the Authority issued bonds to help businesses expand in the City. The

aggregate principal amount payable for the revenue bonds issued and outstanding at September 30,
2024 was $475,000,000.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

10.

11.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Hampton is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has
joined together with other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk
Management Agency (GIRMA) for property and liability insurance and the Workers’ Compensation
Self-Insurance Fund (WCSIF), public entity risk pools currently operating as common risk
management and insurance programs for member local governments. The Georgia Municipal
Association (GMA) administers both risk pools.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed
by the pools, to cooperate with the pools’ agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures
established by the funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage
descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being required to pay any claim of
loss. The City is also to allow the pools’ agent and attorneys to represent the City in investigation,
settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within
the scope of loss protection turnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in
the member governments’ contracts and in accordance with the workers’ compensation laws of
Georgia. The funds are to pay all costs taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by
the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation,
negotiation or defense.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The
plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Participation in the plan is voluntary. The City has no management, contribution or participation
requirements. The Plan is not included in the City’s financial statements.

Plan Description —

The City, as authorized by the City Council, has established a non-contributory defined pension plan,
City of Hampton Retirement Plan (HRP), covering all full-time employees. HRP is affiliated with the
Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent multiple-employer pension plan
administered by the Georgia Municipa! Association. Contributions made by the City are commingled
with contributions made by other members of GMEBS. The City does not own any securities on its
own. Tnvestment income from the securities is allocated on a pro rata basis. The Georgia Municipal
Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for GMEBS. That report may be obtained by writing to Georgia
Municipal Association, 201 Pryor Street, SW, Atlanta, Georgia, 30303 or by calling (404) 688-0472.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS — (Continued)

As provided by state law, benefit provisions for participants in GMEBS are established by the
respective employers. As authorized by City Council, the plan provides pension benefits and death
and disability benefits for all employees that have been employed full time for one year. Members
may retire on reaching the age of 65, depending on their classification. Early retirement is possible on
reaching the age of 55, depending on the member’s classification. In addition, police officers can
retire at age 55 and 10 years of service with full benefits. Benefits are calculated at 2.00% of the
average monthly eamings for the period of the five highest years’ earnings prior to retirement.

Current membership in the plan is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 29

Terminated vested participants entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits 46
Active participants g2
Active elected officials 7
Total number of participants 164

Contributions: The plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement
Systems Standards law. The Board of Trustees of GMEBS has adopted a recommended actuarial
funding policy for the plan which meets state minimum requirements and will accumulate sufficient
funds to provide the benefits under the plan. The funding policy for the plan is to contribute an
amount equal to the recommended contribution described below. For 2024, the actuarially determined
contribution rate was 9.12% of covered payroll. For 2024, the City’s contribution to the plan totaled
§$397,637.

Net Pension Liability of the City

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of January 1, 2024. The total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30,
2023 with update procedures performed by the actuary to roll forward to the total pension liability
measured as of January 1, 2024.

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the September 30, 2023, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.25%
Salary increases 2.25% plus service based merit increases
Investment rate of return 7.375%

Mortality rates for healthy individuals were based on the Pri-2012 headcount weighted Healthy
Retiree Mortality Table with sex-distinct rates. Mortality rates for disabled individuals were based on
the Pri-2012 head-count weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table with sex-distinct rates.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS — (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2024 valuation were based on results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2019 conducted in November and
December 2019. There is no cost of living adjustment by the Plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of March 31, 2023 are summarized in the following table:

Long-term

Expected real

Asset Class Allocation rate of return*
Domestic equity 45% 6.91%
International equity 20% 7.21%
Domestic fixed income 20% 1.61%
Real estate 10% 3.61%
Global fixed income 5% 1.67%
Cash 0% 0.00%

* Rates shown are net of the 2.25% assumed rate of inflation.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.375%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that City contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all of the projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS — (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability of the City: The changes in the components of the net pension
liability of the City for the year ended September 30, 2024, were as follows:

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)—(b)
Balances at September 30, 2023 $ 6,587,948 S 4,720,967 $ 1,866,981
Changes for the year:
Service cost 218,039 E 218,039
Interest 490,058 - 490,058
Differences between expected
and actual experience (46,099) - (46,099)
Contributions — employer - 356,263 (356,263)
Net investment income - 638,030 (638,030)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (322,262) (322,262) -
Administrative expense = (13.,379) 13.379
Net changes 339.736 658.652 (318,916)
Balances at September 30, 2024 S 6,927.684 S_ 5379619 $__ 1,548,065

The required schedule of changes in the City’s net pension liability and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the net
pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.375 percent, as well as what the
City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (6.375 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.375 percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.375%) (7.375%) (8.375%)
City’s net pension liability § 2,474,701 $ 1,548,065 $ 779,779

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan
in effect as of January 1, 2024, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and
employee.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11.

12.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS — (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of $428,547. At
September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual expense $ 97,468 $ (47,771)

Net difference between projected and actual eamings

on pension plan investments 246,185 -
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 275,002 -
Total $ 618,655 $ (47.771)

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $275,002 are reported as deferred outflows
of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending
September 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending September 30:

2025 § 60,889
2026 93,707
2027 199,106
2028 (57.820)
S_295.882

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The “Net investment in capital assets” amounts as reported on the Govemment-wide Statement of Net
Position as of September 30, 2024 is as follows:

Govermnmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Cost of non-depreciable capital assets $ 5,988,358 h) -
Cost of depreciable capital assets 24,875,069 25,125,868
Less: Accumulated depreciation (10.428.180) (13.311,802)
net book value 20,435,247 11,814,066
Less: Capital accounts payable (105.,445) -
net investment in capital assets S_20.329.802 S_11.814066
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

16.

JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the city, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area, is
a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Membership in this organization is required
by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA). Section 50-8-34, which provides for the
organizational structure of the Commission in Georgia. The ARC Board membership includes the
chief elected official of each county, one representative for all the cities in a member county and 15
citizen representatives. OCGA 50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any
debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial statements may be obtained from:

Atlanta Regional Commission
40 Courtland Street, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX

The City levies a 5% hotel/motel tax in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 48-13-51. In order
to comply with the expenditure requirements of this code section, the City remits monies collected
under this provision to the Henry County Chamber of Commerce. The following is a summary of the
collections and expenditures for the year ended September 30, 20?%:

Amount Percent
Total collected $ 21,985 100%
Amount remitted to Henry County Chamber of Commerce $ 8,071 37%
Amount remitted for Public Relations S 32,616 148%

MAJOR VENDORS

Purchases of water for resale from the Henry County Water Authority accounts for 12% of the
expenses for the utilities fund. Purchases of electricity for resale from Central Georgia EMC
accounts for 28% of the expenses for the utilities fund.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated events, activities and transactions subsequent to the balance sheet through
March 30, 2025 (the date the financial statements were made available to be issued) for potential

recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Management has identified no events that
required adjustment and disclosure in the financial statements that were issued on March 30, 2025.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
These funds are generally used to account for tax supported activities which include the nonmajor special
revenue and capital projects funds of the City.
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes.

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund — To account for taxes collected on overnight lodging rentals. In accordance with
Georgia law, a portion of these revenues are used to promote tourism.

Downtown Development Authority — To account for activities related to the redevelopment of downtown
Hampton.

Hampton Development Authority — To account for activities related to the development of areas outside
downtown Hampton.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

Capital Grant Fund — To account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities.

SPLOST IV Capital Project Fund — To account for capital projects financed by a sales and use tax.
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Taxes $ 22,360 $ 22,360 S 21,124 S (1,236)
Investment income 520 520 861 341
Total revenues 22.880 22.880 21.985 (895)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic development/Main Street 22.880 22.880 40.687 (17.807)
Total expenditures 22.880 22.880 40.687 (17,807)
Net change in fund balances $ - S - (18,702) S (18,702)
Fund balance — beginning of year 68.164
Fund balance — end of year 3 49,462

65



CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

HAMPTON DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES
Investment income
Issuer Fees

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Planning/Community development

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance — beginning of year

Fund balance — end of year

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
- « 8§ 1,004 S 1,104
- . 593,725 593,725
: : 594.829 594,829
110,425 110,425 75,236 35.189
110.425 110,425 75236 35.189
(110.425) (110.425) 519.593 630018
110,425 110,425 110,425 =
- - (553.725) (553.725)
110425 110.425 (443.300) (553.725)
- 76293 S___ 76293
21.725
$____98.018
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 10,010 $ 10,010 $ - $ (10,010)
Investment income 22.800 22.800 10.668 (12.132)
Total revenues 32,810 32,810 10.668 (22.142)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic development/Main Street 107,810 107,810 51,146 56,664
Capital:
Economic development/Main Street 100,000 100,000 127,108 (27,108)
Debt service:
Principal 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Total expenditures 217.810 217.810 178.254 39.556
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (185.000) (185.000) (167.586) 17.414
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 185,000 185.000 100,000 (85,000}
Total other financing sources 185.000 185,000 100.000 (85.000)
Net change in fund balances $ - 3 - (67,586) S (67.586)
Fund balance — beginning of year 449.415
Fund balance — end of year $ 381,829
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA
CAPITAL GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital:
Highways and streets
Planning/Community development
Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance — beginning of year

Fund balance — end of year

BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
S 511,887 § 511,887 § 134825 S (377,062)
" 2 6,445 6.445
511,887 511.887 141,270 (370.617)
269,159 269,159 141,271 127,888
511,887 511,887 _ 511,887
781.046 781,046 141,271 639.775
S_(269.159)  $__(269.159) (1)  S__269.15
330,039
$___330.038
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CITY OF HAMPTON, GEORGIA

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

EXPENDITURES
Capital:
Public utilities
Highways and streets
Parks and recreation

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances —
Budget basis

Fund balance — beginning of year

Fund balance — end of year
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BUDGET AMOUNTS VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
5 3,584,520 S 3,584,520 k) 20,819 $ 3,563,701
634,677 634,677 612,710 21,967
310.000 310.000 134.503 175.497
4.529.197 4.529.197 768.032 3.761.165
(4.529.197) (4.529.197) (768.032) 3.761.165
1.339.837 1.339.837 150.000 (1.189.837)
1,339,837 1,339,837 150,000 (1.189.837)
S_(3.189.360)  S_(3.189.360) (618,032)  §_2.571.328
791.815
$ 173,783
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Hampton's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, required
supplementary information, and supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends,____ e 14-84

These schedules contain trend mjormalzon 10 assist the reader in Lma'erstandmg and assessmg
how the City’s current financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity . . .. 85-99
These schedules p/ esent mformalzon t0 assist the reader in assessmg the vzabzlmv oj the Cm"
most significant revenue sources, Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) and property taxes.

Debt Capacity___ ~____100-102
These schedules pl esent mjot mation to help the reader analwe the ajfordabzlm) oj the Ctl‘v s
current levels of outstanding debt and the Citv’s ability to issue additional debit in the future.

Benographicfand Econcmie IO matION., oy eccmiarnrsemmors e s st s N 103
These schedules present demographic and economic information intended (1) to assist users
in understanding the socioeconomic environment within which the Ciry operates and (2) to
provide information that facilitates comparisons of financial statement information over time

and among cities.

Operating [N O matiON. e 104-105
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data that can inform one’s understanding how
the information in the Citv's financial statements relates to the services the Citv provides and the

activities it performs.

Data Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City’s
financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Hampton, Georgia
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year

2024 2023 ()
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Taxable of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation
SMC Southampton LLC $ 21,480,000 1 5.66%
Southern States Inc 16,109,152 2 4.25% $ 14,250,605 1 5.28%
THLIJ Investments LLLP 4,563,470 3 1.20% 4,560,070 3 1.69%
Georgia Transmission Corp 4349836 4 1.15% 4,224,765 4 1.57%
Southern States LLC 3,745,440 5 0.99% 3,626.120 5 1.34%
Georgia Power Company 3,738,446 6 0.99% 1,961,852 9 0.73%
Atlanta Gas Light Company 3516410 7 0.93%
Speedway Industrial Campus LLC 2,793,840 8 0.74% 2,446,080 8 091%
AT&T Corporation 2,133,066 9 0.56% 1,925,234 10 0.71%
American Homes 4Rent Prop Eight LLC 1,789,154 10 0.47%
Oak Southampton LLC 9,370,880 2 3.47%
CP Logistic Archer LLC 2,765.760 6 1.02%
Dr. Horton, Inc. 2,678,480 7 0.99%
$ 64218854 16.93% $ 47,809,846 17.711%

All Other Customers 315,144,580 83.07% 312,965,503 82.29%
Total $ 379,363,434 100.00% $ 360,775,349

Data Source:

Henry County Tax Assesor's Office

Nate 1: Began in 2023 as there was no tax roll between 2015 and 2022

91

100.00%
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City of Hampton, Georgia
Sewer Service Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Inside city: Gallons
Minimum charge
0-6K
6,001K-10K
10,0001 & over

Inside city: Gallons
Minimum charge
0-6K
6,001K-10K
10,0001 & over

Minimum charge
0-4K

4,001K-8K

over 8k

Minimum charge
04K

4.001K-8K

over 8k

Minimum charge
04K

4,001K-8K

over 8k

Data Source:

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
All Customers
) 925 § 9.25 $ 9.25 % 925 § 9.25
h) 469 § 479 § 479 § 479 § 4.79
) 636 5% 674 % 6.74 $ 6.74 % 6.74
$ 931 § 987 S 987 $ 9.87 § 9.87
2020 2021
All Customers

$ 925 § 9.25
$ 479 § 4.79
3 674 % 6.74
$ 987 § 9.87

2022
Residential Small Commerical Large Commercial Government
) 11.00 § 25.00 Minimum charge h) 25.00 Minimum charge 3 11.00
k) 474 % 5.05 0-80k g 9.00 allk S 9.00
) 592 § 6.31 over 80k $ 9.32
s 711§ 7.57

2023
Residential Small Commerical Large Commercial Government
s 12.00 § 25.00 Minimum charge $ 25.00 Minimum charge § 12.00
$ 582 § 5.82  0-80k $ 9.56 allk $ 9.59
$ 717 % 7.17 over 80k $ 11.89
$ 853 § 8.53

2024
Residential Small Commerical Large Commercial Govermment
S 13.00 $ 26.00 Minimum charge 3 26.00 Minimum charge $ 13.00
) 725 % 7.25 0-80k $ 10.02 allk $ 10.02
$ 8.86 3 8.86 over 80k $ 12.32
h) 1047 § 10.47

City of Hampton Water & Sewer Department

98



City of Hampton, Georgia
Types of Customers
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Residential
Commercial
Government
Total

Residential
Commercial
Government

Total

Residential
Commercial
Government

Total

Data Source:

City of Hampton's Finance Department historical records.

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Water
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2,196 2,230 2,277 2,306 2,389 2,408 2,392 2,521 2,778 2,837
69 70 70 69 70 70 71 71 70 72
30 29 29 28 29 30 35 35 35 29
2,295 2,329 2.376 2,403 2,488 2,508 2,498 2,627 2,883 2,938
Sewage
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2,085 2,122 2,170 2,197 2,269 2,295 2,294 2,336 2,602 2,706
59 58 59 60 59 59 58 65 63 61
24 23 23 22 23 24 29 29 28 22
2,168 2,203 2,252 2,279 2,351 2,378 2,381 2,430 2,693 2,789
Electric
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1,970 1,997 2,061 2,084 2,139 2,165 2,173 2,313 2,593 2,401
158 158 159 158 157 158 158 165 162 161
40 40 39 40 39 40 46 46 46 51
2,168 2,195 2,259 2,282 2335 2,363 2,377 2,524 2,801 2,613
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City of Hampton, Georgia
Legal Debt Margin Information
Current Fiscal Year

2022 (1) 2023 2024

Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Valuation Valuation Valuation

Debt limit § 269,894,796 $ 360,775,349 § 379,363,434
Total net debt applicable to limit % - -
Legal debt margin at 10% § 26989480 $§ 36,077,535 § 37,936,343
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of the debt limit 0% 0% 0%
Dollar growth in Digest assessed valuation $ 90,880,553 S 18,588,085
Percentage growth in Digest assessed valuation 34% 5%

Data Source:
Henry County Tax Assesor's Office

Note 1: First year as there was no tax roll between 2015 and 2021

Note 2: Under state finance law, the City's outstanding general oblgation debt should
not exceed 10% of total assessed propety value. By law, the general obligation debt
subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying the general

obligatuin bonds.
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



FUIL T ON KO 7 ANK

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Hampton, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Hampton, Georgia as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Hampton, Georgia’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated March 30, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of
Hampton, Georgia’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hampton, Georgia’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

-8~ Joneshore Rooad Saite 1oai, Morvow, Georgie 10204
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Hampton, Georgia’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Tl v S [, L C

Morrow, Georgia
March 30, 2025
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